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the hest possible service if we attained &
stage where we would be able to balance
our budget. I have done my best to try to
explain that position clearly to the House.

Question put and a division taken with

the following result:—
Ayes . - - 7
Noes - e .. 13
Majority against .. §
AVES,
Hon. J. Cornell Hon. W. R. Hall
Hon. L. Cralg Hon. W, H, Kiuon

Hon. J. M. Drew
Hon. E. H, Gray

Hon. H, Seddon
(Teller.)

Nogs,

Hon. J, Nichplgon
Hon. H. 8. W, Parker
Hon. A. Thousgon
Hon, H. Tuckey

Hon. C. F. Baxter

Hon, L. B. Bolton

Hon, Bir Hal Colebateh
Hon. V. Huluersley

Hon. J. J. Holmes Hon. F. R, Welsh
Hon, J. M. Mactariane Hon, H. L, Roche
Hon, W. J. Mann (Telier)
PAIRE,

ATES, NoEgs.
Hon. G, W, Miles Hon, H, V, Plesse
Hon. E. M, Heenan .Hon, Q. B. Wand
Hou. E. H, H, Hall “Hon. J. A. Dimmitt
Hon. T. Moore Hon. Q. Frager

Question thus negatived; Bill defeated.

BILL—MINE WORKERS’ RELIEF
ACT AMENDMENT.

Second Reading.
Debate resumed from the 16th October.

HON. H. SEDDON (North-East) [8.53]:
I bhave examined the Bill, and intend to
give it my support. It has been fully ex-
plained by the Chief Secretary, and there-
fore there is uwo ueed for me to elaborate
upon its provisions.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee,

Bill passed through Committee without
debate, reported withont amendment and
the report adopted.

House adjourned at 8.56 p.m.
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The SPEAKER took the Chair at 4.30
p.m,, and read prayers.

QUESTION—PRODUCER GAS
PLANTS,

University Tests.

Mr. BOYLE asked the Minister for In-
dustrial Development: 1, Following the an-
nouncement of the Industries Department
some time ago that comparative tests for
gas producers would be conducted by the
University, have these tests been finalised?
2, If not, what i3 the cause of the delay?
3, Is he aware that the delay in announcing
the resnlts is tending to prevent the expan-
sion of the gas producer industry im this
State?

The MINISTER- FOR INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT replied: 1, No. 2, Efforts
are being made to construct the equipme-t
locally but there has heen some delay in
delivery of certain parts of the plant. 3, No.

ASSENT TO BILLS.

Message from the Lieut.-Governor re-
ceived and read notifying assent to the fol-
lowing Bills:—

1, Agricultural Produects
ment.

2, Kalgoorlie Health Authority Loan.

Act  Amend-

BILI—FISEERIES ACT AMEND-
MENT.

Introduced by the Minister for the North
West and read a first time,



1414

BILL—ROYAL AGRICULTURAL
SOCIETY ACT AMENDMENT,

Yeud a third time and transmitted to the
Couneil,

BILLS (2)—BEPORTS.
1, Bush Fires Act Amendment.

2, Road Closure.
Adopted.

STANDING ORDERS.
Report of Committee.

ME. MARSHALL (Murchison) [4.37]: 1
desire to he brief in my explanation to
the House of the Standing Orders Com-
mittee’s reasons for recommending that the
amendments set out in the report be given
effect to. There is nothing particularly
debatable about any of them, but most of
them are necessary, The one likely to eause
some argurent is the proposed addition of a
new standing order. The first amendment is
necessary owing to the alteration of the title
of the Imperial Parliament; the word “Nor-
thern” is proposed to bhe inserted in the
standing order immediately before the word
“Ireland,” because Soutkern Ireland now
has Home Role, The second amendment pro-
poses to transpose Standing Order No. 422
to ifs proper place as Standing Order No.
2. This standing order.is in the nature of
a definition and should not appear at the end
of the standing orders; it should occupy 2
more suitable place at the commencement.
The third amendment proposes to alter
Standing Order No. 31 so as to bring our
standing orders into conformity with the
procedure this House has always followed.
Members are aware that the Speaker has
never read the Governor's Speech, as dir-
ected by the standing orders, but has had
copies of the Speech printed and then dis-
tributed amongst members for greater acen-
racy and for their information. Amendment
No. 3 proposes to strike out of Standing
Order 31 all the words after the word “ac-
curacy” and add the words “‘caused copies
to be distributed.” That is the procedure
adopted through the years, and I believe
that by making this amendment, we shall
merely be bringing the standing orders into

[ASSEMBLY.)

conformity with the practice ever sinee re-
sponsible Government. The next amendment
to Standing Order 32 is more or less con-
sequential on the preceding amendment. The
Speaker does not read the Speeth to the
House; he reports the receipt of copies of
the Specch. Therefore the word “read”
should be struck out and the word “re-
ported” inserted in lien. Amendment No. 5
deals with Standing Order 36 and proposes
to strike ont the words “or if the Speaker
should also be absent, without the Clerk
having heen informed that he was so un-
avoidably, the House shall stand adjourned
to the next sitting day.” The Chairman
of Committees is now authorized under the
Constitution to occupy the Chair in the ab-
sence of the Speaker. Even a Deputy
Chairman of Committees may take the Chair
if delegated by the Speaker to do so. There-
fore the present wording skould not be re-
tained in view of the fact that it conflicts
with our procedure under which the Chair-
man of Committees assumes the Chair in the
Speaker’s absence.

Amendment No. 6 proposes to delete
Standing Ovder 66, which deals with the ad-
mitiance of strangers to the gallery. There
was a time when the Speaker issued tickets
to visitors. Without a ticket, a visitor was
not permitted to enter even the public gal-
lery of this august House. That praetice
has long since dizappeared and been for-
gotten, The standing order also provides
that every member may be issued with two
tickets for the ladies’ gallery, We have
not had a ladics’ gallery since 1921 or 1922
In that year the ladies’ gallery was abol-
ished, although it still has the brass plate
on the door. I believe that the first lady
member of this House took exeeption to
having a ladies’ gallery and this House
agveed to its abolition, so that now we have
a mized assemblage in each gallery. Amend-
ment No. 7 proposes the insertion of a new
standing order after Standing Order 144.
This matter was the subject of some debatq
on the last oceaston when a report of the
Standing Orders Committee was discussed.
The proposal is to insert g new standing
order as follows:—

When any member objects to words used n
debate by another member, the Speaker or
Chairman of Committces shall, if either con-
siders the words to be ohjectionable, order
them to be withdrawn and, if necessary, an
apology made.
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Hon, C. (i. Latham: It should read ‘‘ob-
jectionable or unparlinmentary.’’

Mr. MARSHALL: The matter is open
for amendment; we are not wedded to the
wording proposed. At present there is no
one to say whether an untteranee made by a
member is offensive, unbeeoming or wun-
parliamentary. If any member makes a
statement and another member considers it
to be offensive or wunparliamentary, he
may rise and ask for a withdvawal of
the words complained of, but there is no-
body to say whether snch ntterance is of
an offensive nature. The Standing Orders
Committee considers that the Speaker,
Chairman of Committees, or Deputy Chair-
man should be empowered to adjudicate uxs
to whether an utterance is offonsive. If s0, a
withdrawal may be requested and, if neces-
sary, an apology.

The Minister for Mines: The member
would have to apologise to the House.

My, MARSHALL: Yes, there is no refer-
ence to the apology being made to the
member who considers himself offended.
Amendment No. 8 proposes an alteration
to Standing Order 145. This standing
order is somewhat ambiguous in that it is
capable of two interpretations. It leaves
doubt as to the particular stage of diseuns-
sion when a member may ask for a with-
drawa) of words considered to he offensive,
that is, while the other member is speak-
ing. The standing order reads—

Every seeh objeetion must be taken at the
time when such words arce used, and not after
any other member has spoken.

Exzactly whai is meant by the latter words,
the Standing Orders Committee was at a
loss to know. A member could be offended
by another member’s statement and not be
in the Chamber at the time. He might
enter the Chamber 10, 15 or 20 minutes
later, and having been informed of the
offensive naiure of the statement eounld,
provided the same member was addressing
the Chair, ask for a withdrawal. So long
as he asked for a withdrawal before any
other member had spoken, he wounld be in
order. We think that if a statement is
made that offends another member, he
should make his objection immediately the
words are uvitered. If he fails to take
advantage of the opportunity, he should
not be permitted to interrupt the debate
at a later stage. It has been the practice
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for the Speaker and Chairman of Com-
mittees to adopt this course. When mem-
bers have asked for the withdrawal of a
statement considered to he offensive, they
have been refused the right through not
having raised the objection at the time.
The amendment will make the standing
order deflnite. If any objection is to be
taken, it must be taken when the words
are used. A member may not permit the
debate to continue for a time and then seek
a withdrawatl,

Amendment No. 9 deals with Standing
Order 306, and is eonsequent upon an alter-
ation of the Constitution. The Constifution
Aet Amendment Act of 1921 repeals See-
tions 67 and 68, and inserts a new section,
No. 46, in lien of those two sections.
T do not think members will desire to debate
that proposal. Amendment 10 deals with
Standing Order 331. I am given to under-
stand that maony years ago cach House of
this Legislature had its own refreshment
room. Wge now have a Joint House Com-
mittee, and therefore this amendment is
necessary in order to bring our standing

- orders in eonformity with the procedure and

practice over a long period of years.
Amendment No. 11 refers to Standing
Orders 388 and 389, These standing orders
have never heen put into foree. I under-
stand that they were taken from the Seuth
Australian rules of debate. However, they
have never heen used and are contrary to the
procedure uniformly adopted here. They
overload the standing orders inasmuch as
they are ahsolutely obsolete and ineffeetive.
If they wore of any consequence, it would
be necessary for us to revive Standing Order
35, whieh has been vepealed. I am given to
anderstand that the procedure nunder Stand-
ing Orders Nos. 388 and 389 is adopted in
the South Australian Parliament, and also
in the Commonwexlth Tarliament, where
such committees ave appointed almost at the
first meeting of Parliament and remain in
existence. Our procedure is different, inas-
much as we c¢an act only upon a message
from the Governor. [ move— _

That the veport of the Standing Orders
Committee be adopted.

Mr., SPEAKEK: The amendments had
hetter be put seriatum, because the House
may desire to adopt some nnd disagree to
others,

Amendments Xos, 1 to 6—adopted.
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Amendment No. 7:

Hon. C. G, LATHAM : I move an amend-
ment—

That after the word *‘objectionable’ the
words ‘‘or unparliamentary’’ be inserted.
Words may not be ohjectionable but still be
unpartiamentary. 1 have known oceasiona
here of the use of words which did not con-
form to that standard of decorum that is cus-
tomarily maintained, and 1 think sueh an
ocveurrence had better he left to the Speaker
or the Chairman for deeision.

AMr. SPEAKER: T point out te the hon.
member that possibly Standing Order 131
may be doplicated by his amendment.

Mr. MARSITALL: I have no objection to
the amendment. Standing Order i3l pro-
vides that no member shall use any offensive
or unbecoming words in referenee to a mem-
ber of the House. However, that standing
order wouid permit me to use unparlia-
mentary language against the decorum of the
House. Although 1 have never used any un-
becoming language here, T consider that the
words suggested by the Leader of the Oppo-
sition should be inserted, there being a dis-
tinction beiween what is unparliamentary
and what is objectionable.

Hon. C. G. LATHAM: With reference to
Standing Oxder 131, on one occasion I heard
used in this Chamber a word that was blas-
phemous, and certainly unparliamentary,
though conceivably not offensive to any
member of the House. Therefore there is
ground for the amendment.

Mr. SPEAKER: T think the Speaker is
now empowered to deal with that kind of
thing.

Amendment put and passed; the amend-
ment, as amended, adopted.

Amendments Nos, 8 fo 11—adopted.

On motion by Mr. Marshall, the report
of the Standing Orders Committee, as
amended, adopted.

BILL—CITY OF PERTH (RATING
APPEALS).

Recommittal.
On motion by Mr. J. Hegney, Bill recom-

mitted for the purpose of further consider-
ing Clause 5.

[ASSEMBLY.]

In Commiftee.

Mr. Marshall in the Chair; the Minister
tfor Works in charge of the Bill.

Clause 3—Constitution of board:

Mr. J. HEGXEY:
ment—

That in Subelanse: 4, the word
struck out.

I move an amend-

“of’* o

It this amendment is passed, the subelause
would, sohjeet to the passing of a further
amendment, provide that two members of
the rating appeal hoard shail be members
of the Commonwealth Institnte of Valuers
in actual practice, aml that there shall not
be s member representaiive of Perth rate-
payers. If we desire an expert board, wa
should make it such; to that e¢nd another
valuer should be provided for members are
aware that the Taxation Department has a
board which deals with land tax matters,
and that hoard consists of experts only.
The board contemplated pnder the Bill will
be representative of the ratepayers and will
determine what shall be fair values to bo
placed on city properties. If the amendment
is agreed to, I shall move to strike out the
latter part of the subelause reading, ‘‘and
the other shall be a person who is =2
ratepaver of the City of Perth but not a
member of the couneil, and is nominated by
the Minister charged with the administra-
tion of the principal Aect as a representa-
tive of the ratepavers of the said eity.”’
That means that the elanse will provide that
the other two members of the hoard shall be
members of the Commonwealth Institute of
YValuers in actnal practice. The board will
act as an oppeal board and will have to
hold the seales of justice evenly. One sug-
estion advanced was that an architect
shonld be appointed to the board, but I do
not think an architect would be in such
close toueh with valuations and the varia-
tions that take place from time to time, as
a valuer in actual practice.

The MINISTER FOR WOREKS: I 4id
not object to the Bill being recommitted for
the further consideration of the elause, hut
I decidedly objeet to the amendments out-
lined by the memher for Middle Swan. The
issue involved was dealt with fully by the
Committee previously. The member for
West Perth wished to provide for an archi-
tect as a third member of the board. Taking
the elanse as it stands, no objection has
been raised to the first member of the hoard
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who is to be a lawyer, nor has any objee-
tion heen raised to the sccond member, who
is to be a member of the Commonwealth In-
stitute of Valuers. The eomprehensive
amendment in the form te be proposed by
the member for Middle Swan will have the
offect of laking away diseretion regarding
the third member, for he provides that a
second  valwer is to he appointed. The
amendment to the extent that it will limit
the choice regarding the third member of
the hoard, is decidedly objectionable. The
whole question was thrashed out by the
Perth City Couneil and was first discnssed on
a report from a committee which recom-
mended that the third member should be
an architect. That was not agreed to, and
the ecouneil deeided that the third man
should be a representative of the rute-
payers. The point was raised then, and
it hax heen repeated in this IHouse, that
such a decision would limit the ehoice. At
this stage I would not say that the third
member should not be a sworn valuator nor
¥et an architect, but certainly the City
Council desired that some diseretion should
be allowed regarding the appointment of
the third member. The body that is eon-
templated should be regarded as an expert
hoard or a board of specialists. I think
the member for Nedlands proposed that
there should be three sworn valuers on the
board. One member, as set out in the
clause, will belong to the legal profession
and, as such, he will be a specialist.

Hon. X. Keenan: In what?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: In pro-
cedure. He should also have a hetter
knowledge of what could be aceepted
as evidence and would be in a better posi-
tion to assess the value of evidence tend-
ered. FHis presence on the board would
ensure that the proceedings were conducted
properly and in a dignified manner.

Mr., Hughes: And the presence of a
lawyer will clothe the hoard with dignity!

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: To my
mind, it would be preferable if a magis-
trate were appointed, but in all prob-
ability the services of such an officer eoxld
not be made availahle. We must bear in
mind that the work to be undertaken is of a
special type. Then the question of a
valuer comes in. 1 have seen a list of
sworn valuers, and I find that many of
them are land agents. Provision is made
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already for one valuer to be a member of
the board and I think it wost desirable
that diseretion should be allowed in the
appointment of the third member who
would he a specialist of standing in the
community. For instance, there might be
an architeet who had not only a good know-
ledze of his own profession but an un-
douhted appreciation of rental values. He
might he a man of very wide experience,
but the amendment, as proposed by the
memher for Middle Swan, would exclude
the possibility of making such a selection.
I do not think it desirable that the clause
should be so amended that two sworn
valuers will have to be appointed. Themr
again, if the latter part of the subclause
is struck out, we will delete the provision
that the third member must be a rate-
payer of the City of Perth, but not
a member of the couneil. If that pro-
vision is strmek out, a sworn valuer
who was a memher of the City Com:mif
could be appointed. That would be objee-
tionable.

Hon. N. Keenan: Then he would not be
appointed. '

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: But if
all the amendments foreshadowed by the
member for Middle Swan are accepted, tl.mt.
provision will be struck out. Tpe ti_m'd
appeintee should possess more qualifieations
than merely that of being a ratepayer, to
justify his selection and decidedly he should
not be a member of the City Council. Al-
thongh T do not suggest that we are
slavishly bound to do as the City Council
asks, the fact remains that this phase has
been well discussed by the council and the
¢lanse represents what the council desires.

Hon. N. KEENAN: The argument ad-
vaneed by me when the Bill was in Com-
mittes, an argument now accepted by the
member for Middle Swan, was that we
should have a board of experts and not one
who might or might not be expert. Nobody
would suggest that the ecouncillors of the
City of Perth are corrupt, but I pointed out
that cireumstances arose that so influenced
the decisions of the council that on many
ocrasions the eity valuer’s figures were with-
out justification interfered with.

Mr. Raphael: On all oeccasions.

Hon. N. KEENAN: That is what we
want to cure. We want an expert hoard
that will not be liable to go wrong. T
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repeat that there is no suggestion of bad
taith or corrapt action on the part of the
couneillors.

The Minister for Works: I did not sug-
gest that.

Hon. N. KEENAXN: Nohody did. The
conneillors merely did wrong because they
were not experts. The Minister’s previous
argument against my sugeestion that an ex-
pert board should be appointed was that
seme velwers | ractising in Perth and belong-
ing to the Commonwealth Institute of Valu-
ers were alsu land agents and dealers in
land. However, every single member of the
board has to be appointed hy the Governor
and consequenily hefore an appointment is
made the Minister can ascertain whether
the proposed member of the board is a
dealer in land.

The Minister for Works: The most ex-
pert valuers are land agents.

Hon. N. KEENAN: If that is so and an
expert valuer who is also a Jand agent and
an honest nan, is eligible for appointmnent,
why shonld not he be appointed? The mem-
ber for Middle Swan desites the appoint-
ment of an experi board and I support the
amendment though unfortunately he goes
only two-thirds of the way I would have
Jiked him to go. If there is any difficulty
about the hon. member not having put the
right form of amendment on the notice
paper, I would point out that he has the
right to amend it at any time.

The Minister for Works: All I object to
is the exclusion of the last part of the
clause.

Hon, N. KEENAX: If the two members
are to be valuers and members of the in-
stitute of valuers and are to be selected by
the Governor, what is the ohjection?

The Minister for Works: The elanse sets
out that they must not he members of the
couneil,

Hon. N. KEENAXN: Would any Govern-
ment in power choore as a member of the
board a man who is a member of the coun-
«il?

The Minister for Works:
«lause remains,

Hon. N. KEENAX: Would any Govern-
ment appoint a member of the council after
all this trouble had arisen? Of course not.

Mr. ABBOTT: T support the amend-
ment.

Not if the

[ASSEMBLY.}

The Minister for Mines: I am glad to see
the lawyers agreeing.

Mr. ABBOTT: I would emphasise the
point made by the member for Nedlands
that in appointing anyone to a judicial body,
it is bad policy to appoint someone to rep-
resent a particular party. The Bill pre-
vides that cne of the members of the board
is to be nominated by the Minister charged
with the administration of the principal
Act not to decide a question, but to act as
a vepresentative of the ratepavers. Every-
one knows what has happened in the Arhi-
tration Court where 90 per cent. of the de-
cisions have been given by the chairman
with one of the other two members of the
hench agreeing angd the seeond dissenting.
If a decision is in favour of the employers,
then the emplovers’ representative on the
Arbitration Court bench supports it. If
the decision is in fuvour of the workers, sup-
ort comes from the employees' representa-
tive. Consequently it is not a judicial body
at all, but consists of one chairman and two
people advocating different views, which is
wrong. The Bill provides that one member
nf the board shall be a representative of the
ratepayers. Does not that mean that such
an individual will be an advoeeate looking
after the interests of the ratepavers? Those
interests should be looked after not by a
member of the judicial hody, but by some-
one on the floor. A member of the board
should not be in the position of being in-
fluenced by the fact that he is representing
any particular party.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: We are
not appointing a super valnation board. It
may be that if there were three expert val-
uers they would disagree with cvery valua-
tion of the city valuer.

Mr. Abhott: They would deal only with
appeals.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: I sug-
gest that the City Valuer is not expected to
he absolutely eorrect in all his valuations.
but he is expected to be econsistent. The
trouble has arvisen because places of equal
value have had different values put upon
thent so that some pcople have been wun-
justly treated. What might oceur is that an
expert board would disregard the valuations
made by the City Valuer and set a value
which might be correet, but which would be
entirely inconsistent with all the other valua-
tions. What the City Valuer has to do is
to be consistent.
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My. Tughes: Consistently right.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: He has
to be consistently uniform. After all, these
values are merely arbitrary figures. It is a
matter of opinion. The same thing oceurs
in the buying of a horse. Different valunes
are placed on properties by different
experts. The work of the hoard is not to

go round the eity and value property, but’

to sit in court and hear evidence. We need
men “'h() are not so much sworn \'aluel‘s
as valuers of evidence, and a sworn land
valuer is not necessarily a valuer of evi-
dence.

Mr. Abbott: It would be wrong for the
Government to appoint such & man. The
Minister is sapposed to use his diseretion.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: Tho
hon. member need not be at all perturbed.
The men chosen will be the very best. Tt
i= suggested that because a man has bhad
extensive experience as a land agent he
would be suitable as a member of the board.
Pressure, however, can be brought to bear
upon land agents, for after all they are
still human beings. We have to be careful
not to overcrowd the board, but T think it
desirable to have ou it men who can be re-
ferred to as specialists in land vailues. That,
however, is only one part of the business.
The board must consist of men who are
capable of assessing the value of evidence
placed before them. We want a tribunal
that will review the work of the City Val-
uer. When an aggrieved ratepayer goes be-
fore the board he must show not that a
wrong value has been placed upon his prop-
erty, but a valge that iz inconmsistent with
other valuations, The hoard must endeavour
to discover to what extent that incomsis-
tency exists, if at all. No definite formula
can he applied to valnations in ell muni-
cipalitics. The annual values rvelating to
the whole of the metropolitan area are nof
consistent one with the other. In one muni-
cipality a different formula is adopted com-
pared with what is adopted in another, but
s0 long as the valuations are consistent
within -the municipality, no harm ean be
done. The board would not examine build-
ings, but weigh the evidence. We should not
exclude from it men who are experienced in
pursuits other than valuing.

Mr. Sampson: What is the gualificatien of
a# Commonwealth valuer?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: He
should be a member of the Commonwealth
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Institute of Valuers, would require to have
a knowledge of mathematies, and have a
great deal of general experience,

Mz, Hughes: Do members of that insti-
tute have to pass an examination?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The
work of a valuer is not an exact science.
I do not know what technical knowledge is
required of a sworp valuer. As members
of a union, however, they have the right to
declare themselves members of the institute.

Mr. Hughes: Having satisfied each other
that an examination is not necessary.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: We are
dealing with those who have jumped the
hurdle, and are alveady sworn valuers. In
constituting the board we should not limit
ourselves to & solicitor and two sworn
valuers. I object to elosing the deor to
“other than sworn valuers.” Many men
may be available whom it is desirable to
uppoiut to the board, and we do not want
to be deprived of the right to put them
there.

Mr. J. HEGNEY : The Minister has made
out an excellent ease against the constitu-
tion of the hoard.

The Minister for Mines: Then let us wipe
it out.

Mr. J. HEGNEY: The board will be
there to hear appeals, just as the board
appointed by the taxation anthorities now
hears appeals from taxpayers.

Mr. Hughes: Why do you worry so much
about the City of Perth?

Mr. J. HEGNEY: The chairman of the
Taxation Appesl Board is a legal man when
income tax cases are dealt with, and a land
valuer when land tax eases are dealt with.
If we set up a board to hear appeals from
ratepayers of the City of Perth we shounld
appoint experts zo that all appesls may bhe
properly reviewed. Sworn valuers have had
great experience in the buying and selling
of properties, and, with the sound know-
ledge they have of the job, would be in a
hetter position to hear appeals than would
persons who have not had that experience.
Of what use would it be to appoint a board
to hear appeals if ity members were not
competent to analyse the deeisions arrvived
at hy the city valuer? The selection of
persons to serve on the board is one of the
most important features of the Bill

Mr. SAMPSON: We cannot safely
adopt the amendment. The hon. member
has failed to advise us of the gualifications
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of members of the Commoanwealth Institute
of Valuers. The Minister believes they
should have a knowledge of mathematics,
but we are not aware whether that is so.
They have a knowledge of the value of land.
On what basis are they admitted? Is it on
the payment of a fee or do they pass a
qualitfying test? The Bill is quite =satis-
factory as it stands in respect of valuers
and it would not be wise o alter it. There
is provision for one member of the Com-
monwcalth Institute of Valuers and he can
bring forward all the arguments that ean
properly be brought forward by a valuer.
‘Whether he would have a knowledge of
mathematics or not, I am not able to say.
The Bill provides for a varied type of men
who are qualified in respeet of valuations.
We should not set aside the provisions con-
tained in the clause. I believe that valuers
appninted Wy the State under the Land
Agents Aect are accepted if their character
is above reproach and subject to their pay-
ing a prescribed fee, but so far as T have
heen able to ascertain, they do neot have to
pass an examination. I shall vote against
the amendment. I am anxious that we
should have eapable valuers.

Mr. HUGHES: The valuer who sits on
the hoard of valuers is not going to substi-
tute his own opinion for the sworn testi-
mony. When an applicant goes before the
‘board, I take it he will bring along & couple
of valuers and such other evidence which
he thinks will convince the hoard, and those
on the board will decide on the evidence
tendered. Tf the members of the hoard sub-
stitute their own opinion for the evidence
that has been given, the decision is hound
to be upset on appeal. I do not see that
there is any magic in the membership of
the Commonwealth Tnstitute of Valuers. I
would he safe in making the statement that
not one memhber of that institute could pass
a junior examination in mathematies. I
know many people who are sworn valuers
and  whose knowledre mathematically is
limited. = After all, the question is the valna-
tion of a propertyv. I eannot understand
the sugzestion of the Minister that the
hoard will endeavour tn assess a value ron-
sistent with other values in the distriet.

The Minister for Waorks: That is highly
impartang,

Mr, TIUGHES: The value of property
35 the existing eapital value and H a pro-
poerty were earning £100 a year, it would
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be worth £€2,000, bhecause vou would get 5
per cent. clear by letting it on its rental
value, which must be the basis of valuation.

The CHAIRMAN: Will the hon member
please get back to the amendment? The
discussion has been very wide,

Mr. HUGHES: The Commonwealth In-
stitute of Valuers consists of o number of
people who banded tegether to give them-
selves some standing in the community.
People who have been engaged in the work
of wvaluing property for various purposes
were allowed to join and one of the ditlicul-
tics about this type of organisation is the
same as that existing in the aceountancy
world. I conld point te people in TPerth
with eertificates 3ft. x 2ft. in size. Some
person in Sydney conceived the idea of
forming a separate institute of aceonntants
and he wrote to typists and clerks and others
and induced them to enrel as members, and
then sent them the huge 3ft. x 2fE. certi-
ficate. The man in the street does not know
the difference between a chartered aceount-
ant and anyone else, hut when he sees a big
certificate displayed, he takes it for granted
that the holder must he a qualified person.
Not many members of the Cemmonwealth
Institute of Valuers passed any examination
prior to membceship. Tf they have done
50, then that must be a reeent development.
I cannot see any advantage in putting two
of such valuers on the bhoard. The wider
we leave the choice, the better board we are
likely to get. The hoard would be very
much stromger if an aceountonf were ap-
pointed to it.

The Minister for Works: T think so, ton.

Mr. HUGHES: Pcople giving evidence
as to the value of their properlies would
brine with them their rental returns and
statements showing onfgoings, and there-
fore the hoard would he materially assisted
by the services of an accountant. Perhaps the
wisest eonrse fo pursue wonld he not tn
ostablish a hoard, but to provide for appeals
direct to the maristrate of the lnenl court.
[ do not support the amendment.

Amuendnent put and negatived,

M. ABBOTT: I move an amendment-~

That in line 4 of Subeclause 4 the words

‘iz a ratepayer of the City of Perth but'’ he
struck out.
1 do not think any appointee should be re-
presentative of a particular eclass. The
three members of the hoard should act in a
Judieinl eapaeity.
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The CHAIRMAN: I draw attention to
Standing Order 297, under whish no amend-
ment shall be made and no new clause added
to any Biil recommitted on the third reading,
unless notice thercof has been previously
given. I therefore eannot accept the amend-
ment, nor can any other member move a
further amendment at this stage.

Clause put and passed.

Bill reported without further amendment
and the report adopted.

BILL-TRAMWAYS PURCHASE
ACT AMENDMENT.

Second Reading.

THE MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS
{Hon. E. Nulsen—Kanowna) [6.6] in mov-
ing the second reanding said: This is a small
but impartant Bill. A similar measure was
introduced last session, but was defeated
in the Legislative Council. There was not
mueh debate on it in this House; in faet, it
had an easy passage. Of the two members
who spoke on the measure, one was in
favour of it, while the other opposed it.
Section 8 of the parent Act provides:—

As from the completion of the purchase
until the year 1939 and thereafter until Par-
liament shall otherwise determine the Colomiul
Treasurer shall pay half-yearly to the ervedit
of a trust fund to he kept at the Treasury
three pounda per ceatum of the gross earn-
ings derived from the working of the tram-
wavs, and such percentage shall be paid to
the loeal authorities as hereinafter provided.

Mr. Cross: Is not the percentage paid
only to the Municipality of Perth?

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: No.
The percentage is also paid to other local
anthorities, The City of Perth, however,
gets the greater part. The fixed peried hav-
ing expired, this Bill is designed to secure
Parliamentary authority to discontinue the
pavments as it is considered that the local
authorities have been more than compensated
for any reversionary rights they lost when
the Government purchased the tramways,
especially in view of the large amount of
money it has been necessary to expend on
extensions, rolling stock, ctc., since the date
of the purchase, and also in view of the
greatly enhanced Iand values in those dis-
tricts served hy the tramways, which have
direetly and indireetly henefited the local
anthorities. T have read the Parliamentary
debates and studied many of the spreches,
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but can find nowhere anything to justify
the coniinuance of the payment of 3 per
eent. of the gross takings of the tramways
to local authorities, The member for
Subiaco (Mrs. Cardell-Oliver) opposed the
second reading of the Bill because she was
requested to do so by the Subiaco Muui-
cipal Council. She said that she had read
the Act and the Bill carefully and had eome
to the conclusion that technically the Gov-
ernment was quite right in bringing the
Bill forward; but morally she eonsidered
the Government had not a leg to stand on,
Technically, the Government is ecertainly
Justified in bringing forward the Bill, it
having complied with the contract as to
carrying out the agreement until 1939. I
consider that morally the Government is
oven more entitled to terminate the 3 per
cent. payment. It is an injustice to the
users of the trams and the taxpayers of the
State. It really means that those who use
the trams help to pay the rates of wealthy
business firms, banking institutions, land
speculators and many others who live in
comfort in the city.

Mr. Watts: There are many others who
do not.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
Yes; and the faxpayers in the country
and the suburbs and those who do not own
land or live within the area of the Perth
City Council or the Subiace Municipal
Council all contribute te this subsidy. I
mention those two bodies because they re-
ceive the lion’s share of the 3 per eent. pay-
ment from the tramways. The member for
Subiaco said that, with the expectation of
the 3 per eent. payment, the Subiaco Muni-
cipal Couneil was able to reduce rates. If
the payment ceased, it would mean a loss
of £500 to the couneil. It seems to me to
he an extraordinary state of affairs when
the travelling public are expected to help
to pray the rates of metropolitan municipal
couneils.

Mvr, Sampson: Incidentally, the tramways
de use the roads. ’

The Premier: And the councils do not pay
much towards them.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
Where a deficit bas been made on the tram-
ways, the taxpayers of the whole State eon-
tribute to the rates payable by the rate-
pavers of those local governing bodies which
participate in the 3 per cent. payment: and
to counteraet that position there is only one
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alternative, which is to increase the fares.
If the Bill becomes an Act, the roadway
between the tram lines and 18 inches on
either side will continue, as in the past, fo
be kept in repair by the Tramways Depart-
ment, while the poles carrying the overhead
wires will still be at the service of the
ecouncil. I coutend that it is the locsl
governing bodies which, morally, have not
a leg to stand on in demanding the
continuance of this payment. The Leader of
the Opposition ¢id not oppose the Bill
last session. He vealised that the users of
the trams should not be penalised for the
benefit of city ratepayers.

Hon. C. G. Latham: I have an idea that
I did oppose the Bill.

Mr. Sampson: Even Homer nods!

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
Some members of another place were quite
unreasonable in their arguments last year.
One representative of the Meiropolitan
Province said that if the 3 per cent. pay-
ments were discontinued it would operate
seriously against municipalities with a big
area. In fact, he meant it would pepalise
the ratepayers. He did not say a word
ahout those who used the trams to travel
to and from the city, nor about the coun-
try users. The only people for whom a
aumber of members in another place ex-
pressed eoncern were wealthy ratepayers,
not forgetting themselves. It is unques-
tionably wrong to expect the travelling
public to contribute towards the rates of
city landowners, who have already had a
subsidy of approximately £170,000. More-
over, the City Council has had about
£430,000 from the taxpayers of the State,
from which couniry taxpayers have received
no benefit. This umount is the difference
between the .75d. per unit paid by the
council and the actnal cost of producing
the eleetricity supply to the couneil.

Mr. Sampson: Many peeple would be pre-
pared to scrap the trams so that a hetter
service might be inaugurated.

The MINISTER FOR RATLWAYS: One
of the members of the North Provinee said,
‘‘My opinion is that the 3 per cent. is
better in the hands of the City Couneil
than it would be in the hands of the Gov-
ernment.” What an expression of opinion!
What an entirely loose and irresponsible
statement unsupported by any reasoned
argument.

[ASSEMBLY.]

Mr. Thorn: What did the member for
Subiaco sayt

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: She
did not say that. No wonder people are
becoming tired of gerontoeraey. These
people are hopelessly out of date and so
steeped in tradition that their reasoning
is warped.

Sitting suspended from 6.15 to 7.30 p.m.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
The cost of purchasing the tramway system
in 1912 was £488,452. The capital expen-
diture between 1914 and 1938 was
£1,126,557. An ampount of £16000 was
written off for Waratah-avenue, Claremont,
whieh left a capital expenditure of
£1,110,000. There was another amount of
£332,927 representing special expenditure
on renewals and replacements. When the
two are added, the total is ¢lose on
£1,500,000. Tt is extremely doubtful
whether the loeal governing authorities
would have been in a position to spend that
amount of money, and the faet of that
sum having been spent has undoubtedly
been of great benefit to the community of
Perth and Claremont. The Perth City
Counecil would have ohtained the greater
benefit heeause the rates collected have been
far in advance of what would have been
collectable had that huge sum of money
not been spent on the system to help to
open up various parts of the municipality.
Whatever justification the Perth City
Council might have had for receiving three
per eent. of the gross takings of the tram-
ways in the past, there is no justification
for that pavment to continue. The eonneil
has received approximately £170,000, and
I am now asking Parliament to diseontinue
the arrangement. Teo discontinue it will be
neither inequitable nor unjust to the loeal
authorities. Last session T pointed out fully
and clearly the position of the tramways
and the henefit derived by the various loecal
anthorities participating in the three per
cent. T believe that every member has
received a copy of a eircular from the Perth
City Couneil.

Myr. Thorn: We will take it as read.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: No,
T intend to refer to it briefly. It begins—

The City Council notes with alarm that an-
other attempt is about to be made by the Gov-
ermnment to terminate the obligation imposed
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upon the State Treasurer to pay the loeal
authorities concerned three per cent. of the
gross earnings of the tramways as provided
in the Tramways Purchase Act, 1912. The
council again registers its protest against thig
endeavour to deprive it of portion of its
revenue, If the Bill were passed, the eouncil
wonld lose approximately £6,000 per annum,
which would necessitate the raising of the
city rates by 1d. in the pound.

This means that the users of the trams are
expected to help to pay rates to the Perth
City Couneil; in other words, the owners
of city properties, the banking institutions
and wealthy businesses, the land speculators
and people living in eomfort and luxury,
those who use the trams—

Hon. C. G. Latham: Thev do not use the
trams.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: No.
I was about to say that the users of the
trams contribute to the rates which should
be paid by these wealthy people. Those whe
do not live within the area of the muniei-
pality are also penalised and compelled to
contribute to the rates of big businesses. Is
that reascnable? 1 say it is not. Neithm
is it fair that the people of the country,
when they come to Perth, should be penal-
ised by heing expected to help to pay the
1ates of ¢ity landowners. The cireular con-
tinues—-

A recital of the facts of the case will, it iy
hoped, convince members of Parliament of the
injustice of the proposal.

I hope members will give due ennsidern
tion to the users of the trams and to the
taxpayers of the State. There is no reason
why city people who live more or less in
cemfort should penalise the eountry peaple
when they come to Perth and use ths trams.
Mostly owners of large city properties do
not use the trams; they have their own
molor ears in which to travel ani so they
contribate very little to the revenue of the
framways. Yet they expeet users of the
trams to contribute to their rates. The eir-
cular points out that the Perth City Coun-
eil will have to increase its rates by 1d. in
the pound if the three per eent. payments
are discontinned, and that the loss to the
Perth City Council will bé £6,000. That
revenue is received at the expense of the
people who use the trams. Tf the Bill is
passed the fares might not be reduced, but
if the Bill does not become law and we still
have to contribute the three per cent. to the
local authorities, there is a strong proba-
bility that fares will have to be increased-
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In faet, I do not think there is any doubt
about it, because in the last two years the
operations of the trams have shown a
deficat.

The Premier: On account of the inereased
basie wage.

Hon, N. Keenan: The trams cannot carry
the people who want to travel in business
hours,

Mr. Thorn: That is another question.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
The cireular continunes—

In 1897 the Perth City Council granted a

concession to Charles Preston Dickenson (later
the Perth Eleetric Tramways, Ltil.) to con-
struet and operate tramways in the City of
Perth. The council was given power to pur-
chase without goodwill at 2@ years, recurring
at 28 years, and it was further provided that
if neither of these rights was exercised, the
tramways swould revert to the council at the
end of 35 years without payment except the
actual price paid for freehold 1lands, In
reality, this placed the counecil in the position
of owner of the undertaking, with the com-
pany as lessee for 35 years,
Had the system been handed over to the
Perth City Couneil, it would probably have
bheen in a state of disrepair, because none
of the companies operating at the time
would have kept the system up to date, their
desire being to make a profit for their share-
holders. Therefore a large expenditure
would have been required to put the system
into repair and the fares must necessarily
have been inercased. I say definitely that
the people arve fortunate that the Govern-
ment took control of the system. I feel
sure that, had the Government not taken
over the system, the fares would have been
mueh higher to-day.

Mrs, Cardell-Oliver:
now.

Hon. C. G. Latham: Fares on the Fre-
mantle tranis are lower,

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
They are higher than those in Perth.

Hon. C. G. Latham: No.

Me. SPEAKER : Order!

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
Fares are also higher in Kalgoorlie.

Hon. C. G. Latham: Bat the people there
have ‘money. s .-

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS:
The eircular continues—

Another condition of the concession was
that the company should pay to the eouncil
three per cent. of the gross earnings of the
tramways, sueh payment to be aceepted in
lieu of all municipal rates and taxes now
levied or hereafter to be levied which the local

They are teo high
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authority, but for the agreement, would be en-
titled to impose or levy in respect of the tram
lines and of all such Jands, buildings or works
used exclusively in conneetion with the work-
ing thereof,

The City Council has already received a
grant of about £170,000 and in addition has
receivedl from the taxpayers of this State no
less than £430,000 representing the differ-
ence hetween the charge of .75d per unit for
electric current and the cost of producing
it. Those amounts represent a total of about
£600,000, and so the City Couneil has not
fared too badly at the hands of the Govern-
ment.

In 18911 the City Council entered into nego-
tiations with the company for the purchase
of the tramway undertaking., Later the State
Government approached the company with the
same object in view. Tbe City Council pro-
tested against the Government’s interference.
At this stage the Govermment announced that
if the tramways were nationalised, the coun-
¢il’s rights under the agreement would be re-
spected,

The City Couneil’s rights have heen re-
spected.  The agreement was earried out till
1939 when the position was to be reviewed
by Parliament. Therefore I contend that the
rights of the City Council have been re-
speeted.

When the Tramways Purchase Act was
passed in 1912, it wus provided that three per
cent. of the gross carnings should be payable
until 193% and thereafter until Parliament
should otherwise determine. No payment was
made to the City Council in respect of the
value of its rights under the agreement, which
were valued at £500,000 at least.

I do not know where the City Council got
this valuation. It seems high. On the other
hand, the huge amount of capital expendi-
ture, £1,126,000, and the cost of renewals
and replacements amounting to close on
£500,000 make a total of £1,500,000, and it
is extremely doubtful whether the local
authorities would have been able to raise
ihat amount of money to spend on the
system.  Then, too, through the expenditure
of that amount of money there was un-
carned increwnent, the inereased valne of
land by the means of transport provided and
the buge expenditure of money on the
systetn.  The company recoived that inere-
ment without any respensibility, and the
benefit extended to the business eommunity,
including the Perth City Council. The
additional rates collected through the expen-
diture of the moncy would probably equal
the sum the Perth City Couneil argues

[ASSEMBLY.]

it is entitled to for the reversion; that is to
say, the £500,000.

if the Government had not purchased, the

council would now be the owner of the city
section of the tramways. Yet, notwithstand-
ing that the Government refused to compen-
sate the eity for the value of its interests in
the tramway undertaking, it is now proposed
to take away the last of its rights umder the
tramway agreement, namely three per ceat. of
the gross earnings.
The Government has power under the Ael,
to review the position, and the agrecment
has been fully carried out to the end of
1939.

Hon. €. G. Latham: You could not do
otherwise.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: I'ar-
liament, I am told, can do anything.

Hon. C. G. Latham: Yes, but the Gov-
ernment cannot.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: We
have extended the term to 1950, but someone
could move for the deletion of the figures
#1950 and the insertion in lien of “1941" or
1942

This payment of three per cent. of the gross

earnings to the eouncil is in liem of rates
which would otherwise be payable in respect
of the undertaking. The Municipal Corpora-
tiona Act supports this position and makes
provision for the payment of three per cent.
of the gross earnings of tramways in full
satisfaction and discharge of all rates due and
payable by the tramway company in respect of
all lines of tramways constructed in any road,
and all lands, buildings and works used by the
company for tramway purposes only.
Rates, as we know, are not paid by the Gov-
ernmeni, and never have been. It is not
reasonable that the Government should pay
rates to loeal authorities, beeause that would
nerely further penalise people who would
not derive any benefit from the rates.

Hon. C. G. Latham: Do not pursue that
argament too far, or you will be wrong.

The MINISTER FOR RAILWAYS: I
maintain that the country distriets contri-
bute to the city in nearly every respeet.
Country residents contribute in this way,
that if there is a defieit, the whole of the
population has to contribute fo the rates
of big city owners. The same thing applies
to most other buildings. Tt would be wrong
in prineiple that the supreme power should
have to pay to the subordinate power, that
the ~nbordinate power should have the right
to tax in respest of land which the Govern-
ment gives local anthorities the right to use.
Therefore I hope the House will agree to the
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discontinuance of payment of the 3 per cent.
I regard it as an imposition on the part of
the Perth City Council to offer any opposi-
tion to the disallowance of the 3 per cent.
payment. I think the couneil has been
veasonably ireated by the Government—
treated even gencrously. Morcover, users of
the trams ave entitled to the cheapest fares
that ean be granted, and I sce no reason
why they should have to contribute for the
benefit of hig landowners in the city. When
all is said and done, the City of DPerth gets
the lion’s shave. It has already reaped
great benefit from electricity which it has
received from the Government at less than
cosi price. That benefit probably amounts
to half a million sterling; yot the couneil
says that the disallowance of the 3 per cent.
will mean an inerease of 1d. in the pound in
vates. I hope members will vote with a sense
of responsibility as they did on the last
veeasion when this measure was before the
Chamber, and I alse hope that members of
another place will give due eonsideration to
the interests of those who use the irams as
well as to the interests of the Western Aus-
tralian taxpayers. 1 move—
That the Bill be uow read a second time,

ME. LAMBERT (Yilgarn-Coolgardie)
[752]: I listened very interestedly to the
speech of the Minister for Justice. I have
some little knowledge of the provisions of
the agreement originally made between Mr.
Dickinson and the City of Perth. The
member for Nedlands (Hon. N. Keenan)
knows it is an agreement similar to that
made hetween Dickinson and Kalgoor-
lie-Boulder. The flofation of the Perth
Tremway Company was one of the colour-
ful ramps of the late nineties in Western
Australia. After Mr. Dickinson had been
granted a coneession to establish a tram-
way system in Perth, and also in Kalgoor-
lie, he went to London and floated com-
panies. Nearly as many folly-paid £1
shares floated into the pockets of persons
who never subseribed a shilling to the
undertaking, as were reccived by the un-
fortunate London shareholders who did
subseribe.  Probably 100,000 shares were
distributed, without payment, to those who
interested themselves in the venture. I eon-
sider it is the duty of the Minister in
charge of the Bill to bring before Parlia-
ment the original agreement between Dick-
inson and the Perth City Counecil.
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Hon, W. D. Johnson: Hear, heay!

Mr. LAMBERT: Then we would be
able to ascertain exactly what the Aet
provided for the taking-over of the tram-
ways in 1912. Western Australia, I make
hold to say, in spite of the number of
fully-paid shares throewn around promiscu-
ously to all and sundry who were in favour
with the promoter of the company, paid
fully for the assumed value of those shares.
Exaetly the same thing, thongh to a lesser
degree, happened in Kalgoorlie, as regards
the flotation of the Kalgooriie company.
Unfortunately, the Kalgoorlie trams were
not taken over by the State of Western
Australia, and have never been taken over
by the Kalgoorlie Municipality. 1f Kal-
goorlie had bheen a rich municipality and
exercised its right of purchase at valuation,
as it could bave done under a provision
similar fo that in the Perth agreement, a
right of purchase after 25 vears, Kalgoorlie
would no doubt have paid for all promoters’
shares distributed amongst the friends of
the promoter at the time. I hope that in
common decency, and in common justive to
the people of Western Australia, even
metropolitan members will realise the jos-
tice of vofing for the measure. Here is a
provision for pavment of three per cent. on
the gross income of the undertaking before
it was taken over by the Government, which
provision has been in existence for 38
vears. Coincidentally with that, as was
pointed out by the Minister for Justiec, the
conditions for the sale by the Government
to the company of electricity and gas hene-
fited the company by a round sum of
£300,000; that is, in respect of the elec-
trieity seetion alone, It is a dreadful thing
that an Aet containing such a provision
should have found its way on the statute-
book—irrespective of working costs, wages,
and charges and all other eonditions. Why
should the State have entered into an agree-
ment to provide the Perth City Council for
50 years with electricity at a fixed basic
sum?

My, SPEAKER: There is nothing in the’
Bill about electrieity.

Mr. LAMBERT: That was done by the
Government of 1912, I suppose. It was not
a Country Party Government, because no
such party was known here then. Country
Party members at that time played no nse-
ful part in the public life of Western
Australia.
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Mr. SPEAKER: Order!

Mr. LAMBERT: I do not know, Sir,
whether you will allow me to use this par-
allel case, but I hope there is a possibility,
side by side with a revision of the measure
of 1912, to give effect to the provision re-
garding the price of electricity charged to the
Perth City Counecil.

Hon. W. D. Johnson: Hear, hear!

Mr., LAMBERT : After all said and done,
when this monopoly—

Hon. C. G. Latham: This sounds like re-
pudiation.

Mr. LAMBERT: What are
gabbling about over there?

Mr. SPEAKER: Order!

Mr. LAMBERT: I understand that T am
not out of order, Mr. Speaker, in answer-
ing an interjection. The Perth City Coun-
cil has almost been a blood-sucker on the
Government of this eountry. If the Minis-
ter for Railways produced the original 1897
agreement hetween Stoneham and the Perth
City Council, it would bhe seen that a
paramount provision of that agreement was
that, apart from laying the tramway lines
and paying three per cent. to the Perth
Municipality, the company had to maintain
the centre of the tramway track and 18
inehes on each side of it.

Mr. Cross: The Government still has to
do that.

Mr. LAMBERT: T do not know whether
the Government still does it, I do not know
whether the obligation is a continuing one.

The Minister for Railways: Yes.

My, LAMBERT: Then the ecase is a
thousand times worse. I know that in the
original agreement hetween the eompany of
1897 and IKalgoorlie-Bounlder, the same pro-
vision applied. The company had to main-
tain the centre of the traek and 18 inches on
each side thereof,

Hon. C. G. Latham: If the Government
did the fair thing, it would make the Perth
City Council take the trams oot of the
streets.

Mr. SPEAKER: Order!

Mr. LAMBERT: That is one provision
that constitutes an unfortunate flaw in the
Municipal Corporations Act. One must go
back into history to appreciate the eir-
cumstanees under which that measwve was
passed. Tt was based on the Vietorian Aect
and, in consequence, our legislation was
passed in a form that enabled past happen-
ings to occur. Tt was beeause of the pro-

members
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vision embodied in the Victorian Act that
a monopolist like Dickinson was able to se-
cure special privileges. In the early days
of Western Australia, when Parliament en-
acted Jegislation along the lines of the Vie-
torian municipal enactment, and copied its
provisions almost in toto, our Act contained
the provision that allowed hoodlers to oper-
ate. Under the Vietorian Act the boodlers
of that State were able to facilitate their
friends taking advantage of every possible
wonopoly, espeeially in the city and the sur-
rounding districts. That provision found it=
way antomaticaily into our Act. My father
was a town eclerk and T was a counecillor
when 1 was three moaths over 21 years of
age.

My, Sampson: You were a precocious
Young man!

Mr. LAMBERT: Y have a knowledge of
munieipal law and of the hi-tory of some
of the agreements made under that law.
One of those agreements eunabled eolourful
boodling schemes to be foisted upon West-
ern Australia in 1897,

Mr. Sampson: When yon were a bungling
bumble.

Mr. LAMBERT: I shall appreciate hear-
ing the member for Nedlands {(Hon. N.
Kcenan) speak on this subject, because it
was to a great extent due to his cnergy and
tenacity that the policy of municipal soeial-
ism was inangurated in Kalgoorlie. No mon-
opoly such as that under discussion was al-
lowed to exist in Kalgoorlie except one small
avenue that was hardly worth giving away.

Mr. SPEAKER: Order! The hon. mem-
ber had better get back to Perth now.

Mr. LAMBERT: I hope the Minister will
produce the original agreement with the
Porth City Counecil. If he does so, we will
he able to find out what provisions were em-
bodied in the document. We shall gain
particalars regarding the eapital of the old
company and know exaetly what it got ont
of the transaetion. All such agreements
have to he registeved at the Supreme Court.
and we will be able to find aut what rake-
off some of the hoodlers got from the un.
dertaking.

My, Thorn: You are floating with the
hoodlers.

AMr, LAMBERT: There was no rake-oft
when the hon. member was floated! T have
not much more to say, but T hope that met-
ropolitan members will support this legis-
Iation. The agreement has been in exist-
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enee for 38 years, and the City Council has
derived an enormous amount of money under
it, just as it has with regard to the elec-
trieity supply. I hope members will not be
nltra-pavoehial in their views, but will vote
for the second reading and so ensure that
this ancient agreement of 1897 will reach
its deathbed with the passage of the legisla-
tion.

On motion by Hon. C. G. Latham, debate
ad journed.

RESOLUTION—RURAL RELIEF.
To Invuire by Joint Select Committee.

Message from the Couneil received and
vead requesting the Assembly’s concurrence
in the following resolution :—

That a joint committee, eonsisting of three
membera of each House, be appointed to in-
quire inte and report upon such measures
which may scem necossary and/or desirable
to relieve those engaged in the rural industry

drom their present finaneial handicaps and
problems,

BILL—HARBOURS AND JETTIES
ACT AMENDMENT.

Second Reading.

THE MINISTER FOR THE NORTH-
WEST (Hon. A. A. M. Coverley—Kimber-
ley) [B.5] in moving the second reading
said: This is a one-clause Bill to amend the
principal Act. The object is lo give a
elearer and more definitc meaning to See-
tion 2, and to strike out certain words the
cffect of which will be to simplify the legal
position and perhaps prevent litigation in
the future, The move to amend the legis-
lation was inaugurated at an all-Australia
harbour authorities conference in Tasmania
in 1933. That conference recommended the
Commonwealth Government to seenre the
introduction of uniform legislation dealing
with fthis matter. Legislation of that de-
seription bhas been passed by the Common-
wealth and by practically all the Australian
States. The object of the Bill is to bring
our Act into eonformity with the Common-
wealth and State legislation applying to
‘harbours and jetties. Section 2 of the prin-
cipal Act reads:—

The owner of a vessel, and the master of a
vessel, shall be answerable under the pro-

visipns of the Acts set out in the Schedule to
his Act for any loss or damage caused by
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the vessel or by any fault of the navigation
of the vessel, notwithstanding that the vessel
was in charge of a pilot and that piletage
was cowmpulsery, unless it is proved by the
owner or by the master that the damage was
caused by the negligence of the pilot,

The Bill provides for the striking out of
the words “unless it is proved by the owner
or by the master that the damage was cauvsed
by the negligence of the pilot” from that
section. The Bil! was introduced in the
Legislative Council, where it passed all
stages and i5 now presented for aceceptance
by this House. There is not much that I
ean add beyond repeating that the object
of the Bill is to make our Act conform to
those passed by the Commonwealth and other
States, I move—

That the Bill be now read a second time,

On motion by Mr. Sampson, debate ad-
journed.

BILL—REGISTRATION OF FIRMS
ACT AMENDMENT.

Second Reading.

THE MINISTER YOR JUSTICE (Hon.
E. Nulsen—EKanowna) [8.10] in moving the
second reading said: This is another Bill
that is small but rather important. The
object is to make provisien in the Registra-
tion of Firms Act, 1897, for “the prohibi-
tion and regulation of certain firm names
and of certain words in firm names and for
other purposes incidental thereto.” This
legislation has been introduced at the re-
quest of the Prime Minister, who asked that
the principal Act should be amended in order
to disallow the use of the word “Common-
wealth” in the names of firms. The Gov-
ernment decided to introduee legislation
ascordingly and te provide against the use
not only of the word “Commonwenlth” but
of “State” as well. The Bill makes provi-
sion for the prevention of the use of those
words in the names of firms in futore and
also for disallowing the continuance of the
prasent use of those names by existing firms.

Mr. Sampson: They have been very con-
fusing,

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: That
is so, and the use of those words in the
names of firms has not been reasonably fair,
Some people may regard the legislation ag
retrospective in its effect, but that is not so
in the frne sense of the term. It will mean
that some firms will have te change their



1428

names hy the elimination of the word
“State” or “Commonwealth” and the sub-
stitution of some other name not prohibited
under the Act. The passing of the legisla-
tion will not mean any interference with
existing agreements. I have been assured
by the Crown Law Department that the
passage of the Bill will not be prejudicial
to any firm that is trading at present and
using one or other of the prohibited words.
The only effect will be to necessitate a
change in the name.

The Minister for Labour: It will create
work.

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: Yes,
it will ¢reate some work for painters and
printers but, unfortunately, not very much.
Investigation shows that, generally speak-
ing, foreigners have made use of “Common-
wealth” or “State” in their firms’ names.
I am inclined to believe that the owners of
firms should use their own names. We have
Boans Ltd., Foy & Gibson, and Aherns, On
the other hand we have the Economiec Stores
and Bon Marche. It becomes necessary to
go to the Registrar of Companies to ascer-
tain exactly who are the shareholders in
the last-mentioned firms.

Mr. Seward: Who are the shareholders of
Boans?

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: Harry
Boan is one and he has used his name in
the designation of his firm. That is the
point. He did not call his firm by some
other name,

Mr. Patrick: But you would not expeet
to use the names of all the shareholders in,
say, Selfridges.

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: No,
nor in Woolworths. On the other hand, the
names Selfridge and Woolworth are those
of persons, and there is no objection fo that.
Then, again, we have a lot of refugees
in business here whose names end, for in-
stance in “viteh,” but those people {rade
as “Johns” or “Jones” or “Watts.”

Hon. C. G. Latham: This legislation will
not prevent them from doing so.

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: No; I
do not think the Bill goes far enough.

Hon. €. G. Latham: Why not withdraw
it and iniroduce a decent measure

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE:
have to feel our way.

Hon. C. . Latham: There is too muth
fecling the way.

We
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The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: I claim
definitely that the Bill is reasonable in its
provisions, and I hope the second reading
will be agreed to. We have a State Farni-
ture Factory, a State Picture Theatre, and
a Commonweaith Loan Company. 1 wonder
who Tuns those concerns?

Hon. C. G. Latham: Yon can easily find
out.

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: Yes,
but the public does not find out,

Hon. C. G. Latham: What does the publie
want to know for?

Mr. Patrick: The impression is that the
Government is running those eoncerns.

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: That
is the belief of many customers. Many
years ago I used to think to myself when
I saw the State Pieture Theatre, “My word,
the State is striking out!”

Mr. Warner: You were not as simple as
that!

The MINISTER FOR JUSTICE: I
admit that I did not think it was an
undertaking the State was likely to engage
in, but the name did suggest that it was a
State concern. I move—

That the Bill be now read a second time.

On motion by Mr. Watts, debate ad-
journed.

BILL—POLICE ACT AMENDMENT.
Second Reading.

Order of the Day read for the resumption
from the 10th October of the debate on the
second reading.

Question put and passed.
Bill read a second time.

In Committee.

Bill passed throngh Committee without
debate, reported without amendment and
the report adopted.

BILL—OPTOMETRISTS,
In Commitice,

Mr. Marshall in the Chair; the Minister
for Health in charge of the Bill.

Clanses 1, 2—agreed to,
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Clause 3—Interpretation:

Mr. NEEDHAM: I move an samend-
ment—

That in line 7 of the definition of ‘‘Opto-

metrist’? after the word ‘‘making’’ the words
fior fittings'? he inserted.
I do not think the elause will be effective
or will attain what it seeks to attain unless
these words are included. After all, spec-
tarle-making and the making of fittings are
in the same eategory.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I am
unable to aecept the amendment, which
would considerably slter the interpretation
of “optometrist.” The fitting of spectacles
is part of an optometrist’s work. If anyone
went to an optometrist who did not ecor-
rectly follow the prescription, the work of
the oeulist would go by the board. It is as
necessary to have well fitted speetacles as it
is to have glasses that are well ground. If
anybody is allowed to do fitting, it will be
only a matter of time before he will seek to
engage in sight-testing and we will never
be able to police the measure.

Amendment put and negatived.

Clause put and passed.

Clause 4—agreed to.

Clause 5—Establishment of board:

Mr. NEEDHAM;
ment—

That in line 1 of paragraph (a) of sub-

elause 3, the word *‘‘two’? be struck out, and
the word ‘‘threc’’ inserted in lieu.

I move an amend-

If the amendment is agreed to, the Minister
will be empowered to appoint three regis-
tered optometrists to the board tinstead of
two. My reason for moving the amend-
ment is that T have a subsequent amendment
on the notice paper to strike out paragraph
(c) providing for one member of the board
to be a mecdical practitioner, because T nn-
derstand that the medieal fraternity does
not desire to be represented on the board.
If paragraph (e} is struck out, there will
still he seven members on the board, in the
event of this amendment being agreed to.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I
agree to the amendment because I propose
also to accept the further amendment to
strike out paragraph (c).

Amendment put and passed.

Mr. NEEDHAM: I move an amend-
ment—

That paragraph {¢) be struck out.
Amendment put and passed.
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Hon. C. G. LATHAM: According to the
Bill the appointment of the members of the
board is mandatory. The word “shall” is

used in each paragraph of this sab-
clause. It is stated that of the mem-
bers appointed to the board, “three

shall by registered optometrists nominated
by the Minister, three shall be registered
optometrists nominated by the registered
optometrists, and one shalt be a memher of
the teaching staff of the physics department
of the University.” Has the Minister con-
sulted these people and arc they prepared
to Act?

The Minister for Iealth: Yes.

Hon. C. G. LATHAM: Always?

The Minister fur Health: T do not know
whether there will always be a University.

Hon, C. G, LATHAM: We can amend
the Aet when there is not ane. What
1 am pointing out is that we are setling up
the hard and fast rule that certain people
“shall” be appointed.

The Minister for Healtk: I can move tv
have the word “shall” struck out and “may”
sabstitnted.

Hon. C. ¢. LATHAM: I imagine that
would be desirable. If the member for
Perth had not secured the deletion of para-
graph (e), it would have been obligatory
for a doctor to be appointed whether or
not  the medieal profession desired it.

Mr. NEEDHAM: T move an amendment—

That in line 2 down to and including the
word ‘‘councit’’ jn line 8 of Subclause 4 all
the words after ‘‘preseribed!’ be struck out.
Having deleted paragraph i(e¢) membeps
can sce that ne meaning is now attached
to the words I propose to delete.

Amendment put and passed.

Mr. NEEDHAM : I move an amendment—
That Subeclause 5 be struck out.

As the Committee has deleted the para-
graph dealing with the representative of
the medical assoeiation, this partieular sub-
clanse is unnecessary. I understand that
ull the bodies eoncerned are willing to ap-
point their own representatives should the
oceasion demand.

Hon. €. G. LATHAM: This is a very
necessary subelause, and is contained in
nearly every Bill of the kind. The Minis-
ter must have some discrelionary power
coneerning the nomination of persons to
serve on the board.
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Amendment put and a division taken
with the following result:—

Ayes 14
Noes - 19
Majority against 5
AvEs.
Mr. Coverley Mr. Millingion
Mr. Cross Mr. Needhan:
Mr. Hawke Mr. Nulsen
Mr, W, Hegney Mr. Panton
Mr. Johnson Mr. Trist
%‘l{r. Enﬁbert gtlr. gqleock
r. abhy T. ilson
{ Telier.)
Noes.
Mr. Berry Mr. Rodoreda
Mr, Boyle Mr. Sampson
Mras. Cardell-Oliver Mr. Seward
Mr, Fox Mt. PThoro |
Mr. Hill Mr. Waroer
Mr, Keennn Me. Watts
Mr. Latham Mr. Willmott
Mr. Mann Mr. Withera
Mr. McDonald Mr. Patrick
Mr. North { Teller.)

Amendment thus negatived.

Mr. NEEDHAM : I move an amendment—

That paragraph (b) of Subelauvse (8) be
struek out.

Amendment put and passed.

Mr. NEEDHAM : I move an amendment—

That in line 13 of Subeslause 6 the word
¢ftwo?!’ be struck out and ‘‘three’’ ingerted
in lieu,

This affects the membership of the bhoard.

Hon. C. G. LATHAM: In the third line
of Subclause (6) reference was made to
‘‘five’’ other persons being appointed to
the board. The deletion of paragraph (h)
of that subelause will reduce the number
to four, and therefore the word ‘‘five’’
shonld be altered accordingly.

The Minister for Health: The hon. mem-
ber will find that the number is all right.

Amendment put and passed; the clause,
as amended, agreed to.

Clanses 6 to 9—agreed to.

Clanse 10—Disqualification:

Mr. WATTS: The word ‘‘inseclvent’’ is
nsed in this clause. When a man becomes
insolvent he has reached the stage when
he is unable to pay his debts out of the
money then at his disposal. I do nof, how-
ever, know, nor ¢an anyone tell, precisely
when a man is insolvent. In order to give
the Minister an epporiunity to discuss the
matter, T move an amendment—

That in line 2 the words ‘‘or insolvent'’ be
struck out.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: Quite
eandidly I cannot give an explanation to the
hon. member.  This provision was taken
from the Victorian Act. If there is any
doubt about it I do not want it in the Bill.

Hon. N. Keenan: Will the Minister ex-
plain what “under liquidation” means?

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I do
not propose to allow myself to be subject to
¢ross-examination by legal members of this
Commnittee,

Hon. N. Keenan:
mean?

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: The

hon, member can tell the Committee what it
means.

Well, what does it

Amendment put and negatived.
Clanse put and passed.
Clauses 11 to 16—agreed to.

Clause 17—Board may make rules:

Myr. WATTS: I move an amendment—

That in line 1 of paragraph (o} of Bub-
clause (1) the words ‘‘the causes for which?’
be struck out.
To provide the board with power to make
further regulations preseribing additional
causes for which registered optometrists may
be suspended or struck off the roll, is not
reasonable. Clause 26 sets out the grounds
upon which the board may suspend or strike
registered optometrists off the register, and
that should be sufficient without enabling the
Loard to add to the causes grounds that the
board may deem safficient but with which
Parliament might not agree.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I do
not think it will make any difference if the
words are included or excluded. I shall not
object to the amendment.

Amendment pat and passed.

Mr. NEEDHAM : I move an amendment—

That in line 3 of Subelause (4) after the
word ‘‘to’’, the word ‘‘preliminary’’ be in-
serted.
If that amendment is agreed to, I shall move
a further amendment in the next line with
a view to adding the words “in optics” after
the reference to the eourse of training neces-
zary to gualify as an optometrist. No pro-
vision is made for a preliminary examina-
tion to discover the aptitude of a candidate
for entering the profession of optometry, nor
does it preseribe that the course of training
shall be in optiecs. With the amendments I
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suggest, the board will be able to discover
whether an individual is quslified to enter
the profession.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: There
is no objection to the amendment. The
British Medical Associntion wishes to make
sure that those entering the profession are
nof ¢ncouraged o go in for medicine. Per-
sons proposing to take up optumetry should
not be reguired to study medicine but they
will require to have some knowledge of
anatomy and the physiology of the eye.

IHon. W. D. JOHNSON: I think the Min-
1ster should further eonsider this matter
hecause if the amendment be agreed to the
board will be given power io make regula-
tions preseribing standards and conditions
concerning only preliminary examinations.
This will not deal with the actual examina-
tions to indicate the qualifications of an in-
dividual to enter the profession, and the
amendment will certainly impose an appre-
ciable limitation. I consider the amendment
to be dangerous.

Mr. McDONALD: T agree with the mem-
ber for Guildford-Midland, Clause 38 pro-
vides all the power necessary to enable the
board to make rules prescribing the course
of training and examinations necessary.

Amendment put and negatived.

Mr. NEEDHAM : Despite the loss of that
amendment, I think it ossential that the sub-
clause be amended to provide that the pre-
seribed course of training shall be in opfies.
I move an amendment—

That in line 4 of Subclanuse (4) after the
word ‘‘training’? the words ‘fin oplics’’ be
inserted,

Mr. SAMPSON : I hope the Minister will
not accept the amendment, which will bring
the clause into confliet with the interpreta-
tion clause and will make for econfunsion.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: 1
think Clause 38 covers the position that the
member for Perth seeks to safeguard.

Amendment put and negatived.
Claunse, as previously amended, agreed to.

Clauses 18 1o 25%—agreed to.

Claugse 26—Registered optometrists may’

he suspended or be struck off register:
Mr, WATTS: I move an amendment—
That paragraph (f) of Subclaugse (1) be

siruck ont,

Clause 17 provides that the board can

make regnlations preseribing the causes for
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which a-man might be suspended. The words
“the eauses for which” huve been struck
out. It is therefore necessary to strike out
paragraph (£) of this clause, because under
it a man may be disqualified if he bas been
found guilty of some act or omission which
by the rules and regulations is prescribed
as a cauze. The board has been told that it
cannot prescribe by regulation the causes
for which n man may be struck off the re-
gistey.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I hope
the amendment will not be agreed to. The
rules and regulations have yet to be framed
and laid on the Table of the House. Should
they prove unsatisfactory to members, a
motion may he moved for their disallowance.
If the swbeclause is struck out, what would
he the use of making rules and regulations?

Hun. W. D, JOHNSON: I suggest that
the membher for Katanning has said either
too little on the previous amendment or {oo
much on this. T agree with the Minister that
the amendment shonld not be made if the
hoard is to be given power to make and en-
foree vegmlations.

Mr. WATTS: May T point out to the
member for Guildford-Midland that Clause
17 gave the board power o make regula-
tions preseribing the ¢auses for which a man
wight be suspended? The board no longer
has that power and therefore paragraph (f)
should be deleted becanse a man c¢annot be
guilty of an act or omission in respect of a
regnlation made by the board giving causes
why he shounld be suspended.

Hon. W. . Johnson: Therefore the pre-
vious amendment should not have heen made.

Mr, WATTS: Of course it should. The
member for Guildford-Midland should bear
in mind fhat the canses are set out in the
Bill itself. In my view, Parliament shomnld
he jealous in regard to matters such as this.
Parliameat should preseribe the causes for
which a man may be struck off tho register.
That privilege should not be given to a board,
however excellent it might be. As the mem-
ber for Avon has said to me, this provision
would give the board a blank cheque to pre-
seribe what causes it thought fit.

Hon. W. D. JOENSON: The member for
Katanning, in my opinion, should move to
strike out the words “cause or” in paragraph
(£). Such of course wonld be consistent
with the previous amendment.
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The MINISTER FOR HEALTH : For the
hon. member fo argue that everything
should be put inte a Bill is ridiculous.
Regulations are made from time to time by
the British Medical Association and other
organisations and are saltered or replaced
by others as occasion demands and the
same will bappen in this instance. I have
no objection to the deletion of the words
snggested by the member for Guildford-
Midland, but why strike out the whole lot?

Mr. WATTS: If the regnlations we are
denling with prescribe an offence and a
man commits that offence he can be sns-
pended from the privileges conferred by
registration or have his name struck off
the register. To that I take no exception.
Had the words ‘‘cause or reason’’ been in
the previous paragraph, I should have
moved to strike out those words, but the
draftsman eontented himself by referring
on page 11 to ‘‘causes,”’ whereas in this
instanee he refers to ‘‘reasons’’ which we
have never heard of before. So it is quite
plain to me and T had hopes thit the Minis-
ter would agree with me, that this para-
graph derives such authority as it seeks to
bhave from words which have been struck
out, because while it refers to *‘canse or
reason,’’ I do not know what the word
ffreason’’ is there for. It was not in the
earlier clause and could not be struek out,
but surely thai is no reason why the para-
graph should remain.

Amendment put and =2 division taken
with the following result—

Ayes - .. - o4
Noes . .. .. A i
Majority against .. .. 3
AYES,

Mr. Berry Mr. Patrick

Mr. Boyle Mr. Sampsen

Mrs. Cardell-Oliver Mr. Seward

Mr. Latham Mr, Warner

Mr. Mann Mr. Watts

Mr. McDonald !I:l[r. };Vliﬁlmolt
. North r.

Mr. Tor fTelier.)

NOES.

Ir. C te: Mr., Needhom

gi: Cgt‘;:; 4 Mr. Nulsen

Mr. Fox Mr. Panton

Mr. J. Heguey Mr. Rodoreda

Mr. W. Hegney Mr. Triat

Mr. Johneon Mr., Willeock

Mr. Kernan Mr. Withers

Myr. Leahy Mr. Wilson

Mr. Millington {Teller.]

Amendment thus negatived.

Clause put and passed.
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Clauses 27 to 3l—agreed to.

Clause 32—Practice of optometry by
persons not registered prohibited:

Alr, MeDONALD: The Committee will ob-
serve that Clause 3 provides that ‘‘opte-
metrist’” and ‘‘optician’’ are terms that do
not apply to persons engaged only in the
actual craft or occupation of lens-rrinding
or of spectacles-making. I understand that
aoptometry consists of testing sight with a
view fo providing glasses of the proper
kind to meet the peenliarities of a patient’s
sight. The manufaeture of lenses and
spectacles, however, is a technieal trade.
People who are optometrists very often,
or in a numher of cases, do not themselves
arind or make lenses for spectacles. They
go to a man who is not an optometrist, who
does not practice sight testing and does not
claim to have any knowledge of sight test-
ing, bat who is a gpeecialist in lens-grinding
for the purpose of spectacles. An opto-
metrist may go to such a man and give him
a preseription or direetions as to the kind
of lens which is fo be manufactured and
when he gets the glasses back from the lens
orinder, he supplies them to his patient.
Leng-grinding, like the making of medieal
instrnments or telescopes, is done by highly
skilled artisans. It has nothing to do with
the prescriptions of medical men. I am
informed that in all the States except
Tasmania and Western Australia, there is
a firm called ‘‘Optieal Preseriptions’’
which makes up lenses for spectacles,
but does not itself carry on optometry.
The firm makes up the preseriptions of ocu-
lists or optometrists but does mot practise
optometry. Clanse 32 provides in effect
that no person other than a registered opto-
metrist shall practice optometry as an opto-
metrist or dispense the preseriptions for
spectacles made or given by oculists. In the
Eastern States T could go to a lens-grinder
or spectacle-maker without going to an opto-
metrist, In this State, if I get a preserip-
tion from an oenlist, I must go to an opto-
metrist, who, instead of making up the pre-
seription himself, might pass it on to a
lens-grinder.  The result of the provision
will be that the optometrist will become a
middleman where he does not in fact grind
his own lenses, and as the skilled trade of
lens-grinding grows, the optometrist might
find it convenient to have all the spectacles
he preseribes made up by members of the
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eraft of lens-grinders. In addition, he will
have the privilege of being a wmiddieman
hetween the oculist and the lens-grinder.
When the craft of lens-grinding is pre-
gerved, as it is by this measare, 1 see no
reason why a person who gets a preserip-
tion from an oculist should not take it dir-
eot to the speetacle-maker. I believe it is
the practice for the patient to have the spee-
tacles examined by the oculist fo ensure
thot they bave been made according to the
prescription. 1n the Eastern States I un-
derstand that a patient who gets an ocnlist’s
preseription goes to the firm, which oper-
ates in all the States except Tasmania and
Western Australir, and has the speectacles
made up. He does not need to go to an
optometrist as a middleman. I am informed
that spectacles can be seenred at Ffairly
reasonable rates in the Eastern States as
compared with the prices charged here.
People who confine themselves to the manu-
facture of lenses and spectacles do the work
at very reasonable prices. Tt is only a mat-
ter of time before sueh a firm will start
business here, There are men here who do
the work of lens-grinding for optometrists.
If we are to keep the price of spectacles at
a reasonable level, it wonld he & guarantee
to people if they could go direct to the
technieal man, I cannot see why an ocu-
list’s prescription may not bhe made up by
a spectacie-maker, though under the Bill an
optometrist’s presceription may be made up
by a speectacle-maker. To remedy that de-
feet, I move an amendment—

That in Subelause 1 the words ‘‘or dispenac

the preseriptions for spectacles made or given
by oculists’’ he struck out,

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I op-
pose the amendment. The chief reason for
it given by the hon. member is that a firm
operating in Mclbourne and Sydney might
start here. What is behind the amendment
is & desire by the oculists to continue a
monopoly and prevent optometrists from
attaining the skill which we hope they will
acqnire under the protection of this men-
sure. At present there is no inducement to
youung men to enter the profession of opto-
metry. If such a young man leaves West-
ern Australia, he cannot get registration
elsewhere because, through the lack of leg-
islation here, there is no reciprocity., Cen-
lists realise that if the measure becomes law
and the science of optometry is improved,
more people will probably go te opto-
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metrists and fewer to oculists. Spectacle-
making, however, is not exactly lens-grind-
ing. There are men engaged in lens-grind-
ing who are really wholesale spectacle-
makers, They do no sight-testing, but a
person, if he so desires, may bave his spec-
tacles made there. Scores of people travel-
ling the back country buy lenses and
frames, test the sight of people and
fit the required lenses to the frames.
That is one of the reasons why I took off
the notice paper one or two amendments I
had proposed to move. Immediately a lens
grinder is given the right to make spectacles
without first being registered as an opto-
metrist, a loophole will he left for persons
to do underhand sight-testing. We want
to aveid that. If the amendment is carried
that loophole vill at once make itself ap-
parent.

Hon. N. KEENAN: According to the
definition, an optometrist is 2 man who prac-
tices optometry.

Hon. W. D. Jolnson: Including lens
erinding.
Ion. X. KEEXNAN: The term does nol

inelude the actnal evaft of lens grinding and
~peciacle making. An optometrist, there-
fore, is not a man who follows the actual
eraft of lens grinding or spectacle making.
This clau<e provides that only a registered
optemetrist may practice, or dispense pre-
scriptions for spectacles made or given by an
nenlist,  These two parts of the Bill are,
thercfore, eontradictory. The provision un-
der discussion will place in the hands of
registered persons a means of making glasses
rxecssively dear for people who mav have
only moderate means.

Hon. C. G. Latham: It amounis to mak-
ing provision for another middleman.

Hon. N. KEENAN: In other words, we
must give the person concerned a rake-off
hefore we ecan get our glasses. The man
from whom I get my glasses is a skilful
person but is only a eraftsman, who makes
the glasses according to the oculist’s pre-
seription.

The MINISTER FOR IIEALTH: There
are lens grinders in thia State who work
just as mechanies work in a dentist’s estab-
lishment. There are others who make spee-
tacles and sell them by the gross, but do
not make them aceording to an oeunlist’s pre-
seription. The Bill will not interfere with
those persons. It will, however, prevent
people from dispensing preseriptions for
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speetacles made or given by an oenlist. That
is designed to prevent the trafficking that
would undobudtely take place but for such a
provision. Most optometrists can grind their
own lenses, or employ others to do so.

Hon. N. Keenan: Would you prevent a
craftsman who is a lens grinder from earry-
ing out the preseription of an oenlist?

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I am
not here to be cross-examined by the hon.
member, or to say yes or no to his ques-
tions.

Hon. N. Keenan: You are here to answer
syuestions. You arc in charge of the Bill.

‘The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: And T
will remain in charge of it. 1t is a new one
on me that T am here to answer the ques-
tions of the member for Nedlands. Qeu-
lists do not want men to become scientific
optometrists. That is the whole thing in a
nutshell. Half-a-dozen oculists are prae-
tising in this State, and want to keep the
monopoly to themselves. Western Austraha
has as much right to its scientific optomet-
rists as has any other State in Australia.
Because some firm is likely to come here,
we are nof called upon to legislate for it.
‘We have enacted too mnch of that kind of
legislation, with the only result that the
work has always been done ontside Western
Australia. I hope the Committee will adhere
to the clause as printed.

Hon. N. KEENAN: 1 still assert that it
is the right of every member to ask the
Minister in eharge of a Bill {o explain every
line and every word of the measure.

The Minister for Health: But you de-
mand, “Say yes or no.” It is the Minister’s
right to do so if he thinks fit.

Hopn. N. KEENAN: It is the Minister's
right to be either courteous or discourteous;
I cannot take that right away from him.
But does the Minister intend by the pro-
visions of the Bill to prevent an ordinary
artisan who is able to eut lenses and make
spectacles from doing s0 under a proper
preseription from an ocnlist? Is the arti-
san to be told, “Henceforth you are to be
debarred from following your craft”t Is
that the idea?

The Minister for Health: The hon. mem-
her knows it is not the idea.

Ton. N. KEENAN: If that is not the
nim, why must the Minister bring in the
optometrist between the oculist and the lens-
grinder or spectacle maker? Tf the object
wns to get the optometrist so ekilled that

[ASSEMBLY.]}

there would be 1o need for the oculist, I
cold understand it. Bat this clause deals
with the case where an oculist is employed.
It does not suppose the ecase where an
optometrist is so skilled that an oculist is
not wanted. The clanse assumes that an
oculist must be employed; but the patient
cannot go from the oculist to an artisan but
must go to an optometrist, who will get a
rake-off for nothing. If the artisan fills the
oculist’s preseription, will not the patient
go back to the oculist to see that the spee-
taeles have been made correctly?

The Minister for Health: The preseription
afiects only the grinding of the lenses. It
has nothing to do with the fitting of the
glasses.

Hon. N. KEENAN: The patient goes to
the spectacle maker, and must go hack to
the oculist. The elause shoves in the optome-
trist to get a rake-off.

Mr. TRIAT: I am keenly interested in
the Bill, beeause the eyesight of people needs
to be protected, especially in the back
country. When it comes to a question of
exeoptional skill in testing eyesight, the
doctor is the man. If one has sufficient
money to get a prescription from an oculist,
one also goes to & lens-grinder of the highest
skill. Similarly one takes a doector’s pre-
seription to a chemist; Boan’s, for example,
employ o chemist. In the case of spectacles
one can go to an oculist, and then to the
spectacle-maker direct. I support the
amendment.

Hon. W. D, JOHENSON: I hope the
amendment will not he made. We sppear
to be trying to multiply expenses, not to
reduce them. We say there must be an
oculist, and then an optometrist, and also
a lens-grinder. Optometrists are lens-
erinders.

Members: No.

Hon. W. D, JOHNSON: I go by my own
practical experience. Unfortunately, I have
been compelled to consult an optometrist or
optician, registered and properly qualified;
and that man does the lot. I have not gone
to an oenlist. The optometrist tested my
sight, and ascertained the kind of glasses 1
necded; and he secured them, I take Y, in
his own establishment. Anyhow, he did fix
spectacles on me, and took much pains to
ensure that they fitted correctly. No lens-
grinder came into the picture af all. If a
lens-grinder was used, he was used by the
optometrist, who employed a mechanic for



[22 Ocroper, 1940.]

that purpose, exacily as is done in dentistry.
It would be wrong to say that dentists
mus; not do their own mechanical work.
Most dentists have gone through a course
of training in the making of dentures and
so forth, but there arc special dental mech-
anies who do most of the work.

Hon. C. G. Latham: And the same posi-
tton applies with regard to glasses.

Hon, W. D. JOHNSON: At the outset
most of the practitioners prefer to make
their own lenses, but as their business in-
creases they employ others to do the mech-
anical side of the work. If we are to pro-
vide for the lens grinder as well, we will
have to pass a special Act to protect him
against those he employs to assist in his
undertaking. The lens grinder cannot read
the prescription made out by an oculist,
for that has to be stundied by a skilled op-
tometrist.

Hon. C. (. Latham: If the lens grinder
cannot vead the preseription, how can he
make the glagses?

Hon. W. D. JOHNSON: An individual
goes to an oeulist if he suffers from
some disease of the eye. Does the hon. mem-
ber suggest that the individual must go from
the oculist to the optometrist and then to the
lens-grinder?

Hon. C. G. Latham: That is what you
want to foree people to do.

Hon. W, D. JOHNSON: I do not want
to force people fo do that.

Mrs. Cardell-Oliver: But you would take
the glasses back to the oculist.

Hon. W. D. JOHNSON: Yes, if a person
is foolish enough to go to him first.

Mrs. Cardell-Oliver:
teet your eyesight.
only quacks,

The Mianister for Health: What does the
hon. member know about it that she shounld
describe optometrists as gnacks?

Hon. W. D. JOHNSON: Railway em-
ployees who require to have their evesight
tested do not go o an oculist unless they are
suffering from some disease of the eye that
necessitates the attention of a medical man.
The bulk of the people go to the optometrist
direct. The Bill will provide protection
against quacks. We adopted the same
course regarding dentistry, and we are now
trying to get rid of quacks in that profession
as a result of the legislation we passed.

But yon must pro-
Some optometrists are
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Hon. C. G. LATHAM: With all the good
advice he tendered, the member for Guild-
ford-Midland stilt misses the point. A person
goes to an oculist voluntarily. All men who
enlist in the Army or railway men whose
sight requires special testing, are sent to an
oculist because he is an expert in eye com-
plaints.

Hon. W. D. Jehnson:
fixes them up.

Hon. C. G. LATHAM: The optometrist
does nothing of the sert. An optometrist is
a man who measures the vision of the eyo
by means of an instrument.

Hon. W, D, Johnson: Did you get that
out of a dictionary?

Hon, C. G. LATHAM: Yes, out of
Webster. The oculist preseribes the type of
glasses necessary. If the Bill is passed in
its present form, we will compel people to go
to optometrists and thus we will ¢ause extra
expense to the individual.

The Minister for Health: Did you cver go
to an oculist yourself?

Hon. C. G, LATHAM : Yes.

The Minister for Health: Where did he
send you?

Hon, C. G. LATHAM: He sent me to a
certain persen whose name I will not men-
tion.

The Minister for Health: That will be to
the optometrist under this Bill.

Hon. C. G. LATHAM: I do not know that
that is so. It seems to me that quite unneces-
sary expense will be involved. This Bill seeks
to create another close preserve for a further
section of the professional men. In this in-
stance we tell the publie that they must not
go to the man who does the work, but
mnst *proceed through an intermediary,
all of which will mean added expense.
I strongly objeet to that, beeause I know
the charge for spectacles is mueh greater
than it should be. My desire is that persons
who require spectacles—and unfortunately
many do, including young people—should
be able to secure them as cheaply as pos-
sible consistent with efficiency.

Mr. McDONALD: The B.M.A, is not
endeavouring to get this elanse struck out.
The association does not mind the clause,
which affects only the buyer, the patient,
who is called upon to pay an extra amount.
The oeulist eollects his fee and it does not
matter to him whether s patient goes to
an optometrist first and to a lens-grinder
afterwards, or whether the potient takes the

The optometrist
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prescription direct to the lens-grinder. The
patient pays more by going to a middle-
man. Under the Bill, the optometrist is
presumed fto be a qualified person and
people who desire to consult him will do
50; on the other hand, if people desire to
consult an oculist they will do so. The part
to which I object only applies when the
patient has gone to an oeulist.

Hon, N. Keenan: That is the point.

Mr. McDONALD: A patient will go to
an oeulist for various reasons; it may be
disease of the eye, a peculiarity of sight
beyond the powers of the optometrist, or it
may be to obtain the best advice possible,
but the patient elects to consult an oculist.
Having done so—and he would not have
consulted an optometrist in the cirenm-
stances—he has to take the oculist’s pre-
seription through the optometrist to a lens-
grinder. Some optometrists in Perth can
grind lenses. Others can or cannoi; they
employ a lens-grinder. As our population
grows, lens-grinding in this eity will be-
come a special craftsman’s trade, as it is in
all other large cities. When that time comes,
optometrists will not grind lenses, but will
send the preseription to craftsmen who
specialise in that work. The Bill does not
provide for the registration of spectacle-
makers and lens-grinders.

The Minister for Health: They can make
spectacles and grind lemses without being
optometrists.

Mr. McDONALD: As I said, such people
will not be registered. Under the Bill, if
an opfometrist goes to a man in Murray-
strcet who is a lens-grinder and says, ‘‘1
shall employ you to make up a preserip-
tion,”’ there is po danger. But if the
oculist says to his patient, ' Take this pre-
seription down to Mr. Jones in Murray-
street and have it made up,’’ there is a
danger. The Minister sees a loophole. But
this idea of a loophole is the biggest bogy
T have heard of. If a loophole exists when
a prescription is made up by a lens-grinder,
then a loophole exists also when a preserip-
tion is made up by an optometrist. There
is not the slightest difference. This par-
ticular provision will affeet people needing
spectacles but whao eannot afford to pay a
big price. It will mean that all preserip-
tions for spectacles must pass through this
privileged body that we propose to sel up
by the Bill. There is no need for it. The
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provision has no precedent anywhere in the
world. I think it is a blot on the Bill and
hope it will be struck out.

Amendment put and a division taken with
the following result:—

Ayes . v L7
Noes .. .. . .. 15
Majority for . .02
Aves,
Mr, Berry Mr. Rodoreda
Mrs, Cardell-Oliver Mr. Seward
Mr. Fox Mr. Thorn
Mr. Hilt Mr. Trint
Mr. Keenan Mr. Warcer
Mr, Latbam Mr. Waits
Mr. McDonald Mr. Wilimott
Mr. North Mr. Maon
Mr. Patrick {Tclier.)
NOES,
Mr. Coverley Mr. Needhom
Mr. Cross Mr, Nulsen
Mr. J. Hegney Mre. Panton
Mr. W, Hegney Mr, Sampsen
Mr, Johngeon Mr. Willcock
Mr. Lambert Mr. Withers
Mr. Leahy Mr. Wilron
Mr, Millington ¢ Teller.}
PAIng.
ATES, Noes.
Mr. Abbott Mr. Styants
Mr. Stubbs Mr, Toenkin
Mr. J. H. Smith Mr, Holman

Amendment thus passed.
Clause, as amended, put and passed.
Clause 33—agrecd to.

Clause 34—Registration of persons praec-
tising as optometrists or opticians al the
commeneement of the Aet:

My. NEEDHAM: I move an amendment—

That in line 3 of paragraph (b) the words
“4in this State’’ be struck out.

The marginal note to the clanse is as fol-
lows :— ‘Registration of persons praetising
as optometrists or opticians at the ecom-
mencement of this Aect,” and paragraph
{(b) reads— ‘immediately prior to the com-
mencement of this Act he had been con-
tinuously and bona fide ebgaged in this
State for not less than five years in the
practice of optometry, either as an opto-
metrist or optieian, or as an employee of
an optometrist, optician, ete.’”’ If the
words ‘‘in this State’’ are allowed to re-
main, many men who have good qualifica-
tions as optometrists and who may have
been practising the profession in the
Fastern States will be penalised. Provided
they are competent to pass the examina-
tion preseribed by the beard, T cannot see
why they shonld be debarred. There is
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sufficient safeguard in the words ‘‘not less
than five years.’’ Anyone who has been
praetising for that period in any State of
the Commonwealth should be competent and
accordingly, registered.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: I de
not oppose the amendment.

Hon. W. D. JOHNSON: I am not pre-
pared to have the words deleted unless wo
limit the provision to Australia. It must be
remembered that many refugees have been
encouraged to come to Australia, and if
these words are struck out we shall leave
the way open for them to set up practice as
optometrists. It is only reasonable to en-
sure that these people shall not take up
lucrative positions without in some way
Justifying their presence.

Mr. NEEDHAM: My object was to pre-
vent any man in Australia who had been
practising optometry for a period of five
vears from being penalised. I realise the
danger pointed ont by the hon. member and
can see that some refugees might come to
the State and after three or four weeks be
entitled to practise optometry to the exclu-
sion of British-born or Australian eitizens.
I have no objection to some provision being
inserted to confine the measure to Austra-
lians or Britishers.

Amendment put and passed.
Hon, W. D, JOINSON:

amendment—

That the words ‘‘within Australia’’ be in-
serted in licu of the words struck out.

I move an

Amondment put and passed.
Mr. NEEDHAM:

ment—

That in paragraph (b) the words “‘or as
an employee of an optometrist or optician,
or partly as such optometrist or optieian and
partly as such employee’’ be struck out.

I move an amend-

A man might be employed by an opto-
metrist or an optician without baving any
knowledge of the work. The Bill will cer-
tainly be better without those words.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: A
man within six months of the passing of the
measure might be an employee of an opto-
metrist for training. If he ecould prove his
eompetency to the satisfaetion of the board
and by a reasonable practical demonstra-
tion, he should be entitled to registration.
The words will do ne harm.
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Hon. 'W. D. JOHNSON: The provision
it 50 wide that anyone in anticipation of the
passing of the measure could begin prepar-
ing himself for examination and obtain reg-
istration. We should have a safeguard that
employces are engaged in this work. The
paragraph could be improved by stipulating
“as an employee as an optometrist” instead
of “as an employee of an optometrist.”

Mr. MeDonald: I think that iz covered
elsewhere.

Mr. SAMPSON: There is full protection.
A man could not set up as an optometrist
unless he was able to pass a reasonable
practical test of ecompetency.

Mr. FOX: The Minister has explained
the matter satisfactorily. In my opinion the
words are necessary.

Mr. NEEDHAM: If a man had been
employed #s an optometrist or optician,
there could be no objection,

Mr. Fox: He would have to satisfy the
board.

Mr. NEEDHAM: But there is no provi-
sion to that effect. The paragraph contains
no assuranee that such an employee was em-
ployed in optometry.

Hon. W. D. JOHNSON: Provision has
been made for five year’s practice in Aus.
tralia, but under the paragraph anyone conld
sidetrack that yvequirement. The Minister
should realise the danger. If a man had
qualified in some other part of the world,
he would not require the gualification of five
year’s practice here.

The Minister for Health: Yes, he would.
The paragraph says “engaged for not less
than five years” in the praectice of optometry
or as an employee.

Hon. W. D, JOHNSON: If the Bill de-~
fined an employee as an optometrist, my
objection would be removed.

The Minister for Health:
mind that.

Mr, TRIAT: X do not agree that refugees
would under this Bill be-entitled to hecome
members of the profession, beecause they
would have had to be engaged in the practice
of optometry in Western Australia for a
period of three years before they could be
registered.

Mr, NEEDHAM : If the Minister's conten—
tion is eorreet, then the clanse has been badly

I would not
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drafted. I should like to see the word “of”
in line 6 of the paragraph altered to “as.”

The MINISTER FOR HAEALTH: The
clause refers to a person who has been een-
tinuously engaged in the practice of op-
tometry in Australia for not less than five
years, employed either as an optometrist
or optician or as an employee of an optom
etrist or optician. Tle must have been en-
gaged in the practiee of optometry even
though he be an employee. It is not neces-
sary to amend the paragraph in the way
suggested.

My, BERRY: ] agree with the view ex-
pressed by the Minister. There is nothing
wrong with the paragraph.

Amendment put and negatived.

Mr. NEEDHAM : I move an amendment:- -

That in line 3 of paragraph (e¢) the words
¢‘this State'’ be struck out and the word
“f Australia’’ iunserted in lieuw.

Mr. Watts: Does “Australia” inelude Tas.
mania%
The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: Yes.

Amendment punt and passed; the clause,
ag amended, agreed to.

Clauses 35 to 37—agreed to.

Clause 38 —Examinations and course of
training:

Mr. NEEDHAM: I move an amendment—-

That in line 5 of Subclause 1 after the
word ‘‘examinations’’ the words ‘fexelud-
ing any medieal teaching, but not exeluding
anatomy and physiclogy of the eye’’ be in-
gerted.

This is a matter for the medical profession
and not for optometrists to deal with.

The MINISTER FOR HEALTH: 1 have
no objection to the amendment.

Amendment put and passed; the clause,
as amended, agreed to.

Clauses 39 to 47, Title—agreed to.
Bill reported with amendments.

BILL—ELECTORAL ACT AMEND-
MENT (No. I).

Council’s Amendments.

Schedale of two amendments made by the
Couneil now eonsidered.

[ASSEMBLY.]

In Committee.

Mr. Withers in the Chair; the Minister
for Justice (for the Minister for Lands)
in charge of the Bill.

No. 1.

Clause 3: Delete all the words after the
word ‘‘subject’’ in line 7 on page 4 (para-
graph (f)) and substitute the following
words:—*‘as hereinafter provided, may with-
draw their nomination before the polling day
fixed in relation to the new election;

Provided that—

(i) If a candidate withdraws his nomina-
tion at or before the hour of nom-
ination on the nomination day
fixed in relation to the new elee-
tion he shall be entitled to a re-
fund of the deposit lodged by him
with his original nomination not-
withstanding anything to the con-
trary contained in section eighty-
one of this Act; and

(iit the right of a ecandidate to with-
draw his nomination after the hour
of nomination on the nomination
day fixed in relation to the new
election shall be subject to the pro-
visions of section ecighty-ome of this
Act.

The MINISTENR FOB JUSTICE: I have
no objection to this amendment. I move—

That the amendment be agreed to.

Question put and passed; the Couneil’s
amendment apgreed to.
No. &.

Clause 3: In proposed new section eighty-
seven, subsection (3):—Insert after the word
‘fafter’’ in line 24, page 4, the words ‘‘the
close of the poll on.'’

The MINISTER ¥OR JUSTICE: This
amendment also is acceptable. T move—

That the amendment be agreed to.

Question put and passed; the Council’s
amendment agreed to.

Resolutions reported, the report adopted
and a message accordingly refurned to the
Couneil.

House adjourned at 10.43 p.m.
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The PRESIDENT took the Chair at 4.30
p.m., and read prayers.

QUESTION-—NORSEMAN STATE
BATTERY.

Hon. J. CORNELL asked the Chief Sec-
retary: 1, Is it a fact that prospectors using
the Norseman State Battery for crushing
purposes have made repeated complaints to
the Mines Department about the dented and
holey eondition of the baitery plate in use
there, and have asked for a new plate?
2, 1f so, why have these complaints, and the
request made, been ignored?

The CHIEF SECRETARY replied: 1,
Complaint has been received from one pros-
pector in Norseman re the battery copper
plate. 2, Whilst this plate is old, it is still
serviceable. Its condition is earefully watched
and it will be peplaced when necessary.

QUESTION—TROLLEY BUSES.
As to Relieving Traffic Congestion,

Hon. J. A, DIMMITT asked the Chief
Secretary: 1, What is the form of the Rail-
way administration’s effort to cope with the
problem of increased passenger traffic on
trolley bus routes? 2, When will the effort

referred to give the travelling public the re-

lief the present unsatisfactory situnation de-
mands ¥

The CHIEF SECRETARY replied: 1,
Six road buses now being built will be avail-
able in December; these will be used pend-
ing receipt of six {rolley buses on order.
2, Answered by No. (1).
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QUESTION—TRATTFIC OFFENCES.

Hon. C. F. BAXTER asked the Chief
Secretary: 1, How many persons were fined
for breaches of the Traffic Act from the lst
July, 1939, to the 30th June, 1940% 2, What
was the total amount of the fines inflicted
on such offenders?

The CHIEF SECRETARY replied: 1,
8,793, 2, Fines £8,771 12s. 6d. and costs
£1,717 9s. 11d. These figures apply to the
metropolitan traffic area only. Those re-
lating to other areas are not available.

MOTION—JETTIES ACT.
To Disallow Regulation.

HON. G. W. MILES {(North) [4.35]: I
move—

That Regulation No. 10 made under the
Jetties Act, 1926, as published in the ‘‘@ov-
ernment Gazette’? on the 6th September, 1940,
and laid on the Table of the House on the

10th September, 1940, be and is hereby dis-
allowed.

For the benefit of members I will read the
regulation, which is as follows:—

Wharfage dues, ete., to be paid:—Except
where otherwise provided, wharfage dues and
handling and haulage charges, as preseribed
in Appendix I of these regulations, shall be
paid on all carge landed from or shipped inte
any vessel. Such wharfage dues and hand-
ling and haulage charges shall, except where
otherwise provided, be levied on the measure-
ment or weight (at the option of the officer
in charge) of the goods as declared on the
vessel’s manifest.

A pernsal of the appendix referred to dis-
closes increases in charges on commodities
that the people of the North require. At
this juncture when the Government has taken
the opportunity to appoint a Royal Commis-
sion to inquire into the disabilities of the
people engaged in the pastoral industry in
the North, the time is not opportune to in-
crease charges that have to be borne by the
producers in that part of the State. T think
the House should agree that it is advisahle to
disallow the regulations pending the receipt

. of the Royal Commissioner’s report. I find

that the new regulations, while consolidating
those that have been made from fime to time,
also provide for increases in the charges for
handling cargo and in certain of the wharf-
age rates payable at North-West ports. Im
a few instances reductions have been made
presumably for the purpose of achieving
uniformity.  Justification for the increase



